Uldaho Law

## Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

---

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

---

11-15-2018

### State v. Cadwallader Appellant's Brief Dckt. 45948

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Nature of the Case

Jeffery Allen Cadwallader appeals from his judgment of conviction for grand theft. Mr. Cadwallader pleaded guilty and the district court imposed a unified sentence of fourteen years, with two years fixed. Mr. Cadwallader appeals, and he asserts that the district court abused its discretion by imposing an excessive sentence.

Statement of the Facts & Course of Proceedings

On November 23, 2017, officers with the Meridian Police Department attempted to stop a vehicle driven by Chrystal Wright. (Presentence Investigation Report (*hereinafter*, PSI), p.3.)

She failed to stop and led police on a high speed chase. (PSI, p.3.) The vehicle was eventually stopped using a PIT maneuver. (PSI, p.4.) Mr. Cadwallader was a passenger in the vehicle. (PSI, p.4.) He initially provided a false name to the officers. (PSI, p.4.) Officers found a check payable to Oregon FFA Foundation and care of Kevin White and a fake Oregon identification card with the name of Kevin White. (PSI, p.4.) Mr. Cadwallader acknowledged that he was in possession of a stolen credit card. (PSI, p.4.) He felt ashamed and wished the event never happened. (PSI, p.5.)

Mr. Cadwallader was charged with possession of forged notes, bank bills, or checks, three counts of grand theft, and one count of providing false information to law enforcement. (R., p.38.) He pleaded guilty to one count of grand theft and the district court imposed a unified sentence of fourteen years, with two years fixed. (R., p.53.) Mr. Cadwallader appealed. (R., p.57.) He asserts that the district court abused its discretion by imposing an excessive sentence.

### ISSUE

Did the district court abuse its discretion when it imposed a unified sentence of fourteen years, with two years fixed, upon Mr. Cadwallader following his plea of guilty to grand theft?

### ARGUMENT

#### The District Court Abused Its Discretion When It Imposed A Unified Sentence Of Fourteen Years, With Two Years Fixed, Upon Mr. Cadwallader Following His Plea Of Guilty To Grand Theft

“It is well-established that “[w]here a sentence is within statutory limits, an appellant has the burden of showing a clear abuse of discretion on the part of the court imposing the sentence.” *State v. Pierce*, 150 Idaho 1, 5 (2010) (quoting *State v. Jackson*, 130 Idaho 293, 294 (1997) (alteration in original)). Here, Mr. Cadwallader’s sentence does not exceed the statutory

maximum. Accordingly, to show that the sentence imposed was unreasonable, Mr. Cadwallader “must show that the sentence, in light of the governing criteria, is excessive under any reasonable view of the facts.” *State v. Strand*, 137 Idaho 457, 460 (2002).

“‘Reasonableness’ of a sentence implies that a term of confinement should be tailored to the purpose for which the sentence is imposed.” *State v. Adamcik*, 152 Idaho 445, 483 (2012) (quoting *State v. Stevens*, 146 Idaho 139, 148 (2008)).

In examining the reasonableness of a sentence, the Court conducts an independent review of the entire record available to the trial court at sentencing, focusing on the objectives of criminal punishment: (1) protection of society; (2) deterrence of the individual and the public; (3) possibility of rehabilitation; and (4) punishment or retribution for wrongdoing.

*Stevens*, 146 Idaho at 148. “A sentence is reasonable if it appears necessary to accomplish the primary objective of protecting society and to achieve any or all of the related goals of deterrence, rehabilitation, or retribution.” *State v. Delling*, 152 Idaho 122, 132 (2011).

Mr. Cadwallader apologized to the court at the sentencing hearing. (Sent. Tr., p.11, Ls.16-18.) He informed the court that his son committed suicide in 2010, and that at the time he was living clean and sober in Oregon and did not know how to deal with it, and he “let it spiral out of control. I let my dope addiction and my criminality get the best of me. That by no means is a cop out. I am guilty of everything that anyone in this courtroom has to say against me and probably more.” (Sent. Tr., p.11, L.25 – p.12, L.9.)

Mr. Cadwallader accepted responsibility and stated that he took ownership of his actions. (Sent. Tr., p.12, Ls.9-10.) He acknowledged that he had been to prison eight times for similar offenses but did not ever have programming. (Sent. Tr., p.12, Ls.12-15.) He informed the court, “I’ve never learned how to deal with loss, with growing up in a broken home, being molested. I never grew or knew – I think at that age I stopped growing because I just pushed it behind me

and pushed it into a closet. I just told my wife right after my mom passed away in May that I was molested. That was last May, sir.” (Sent. Tr., p.12, Ls.14-20.) He explained that “I just let it build up inside of me trying to hide it and being stuck in a vicious cycle. I would like to stand before you and say I’ve broken that cycle, but I haven’t. I don’t have the tools to say this is what I need. I don’t have the strength do to it on my own.” (Sent. Tr., p.12, Ls.21-25.)

Counsel explained that Mr. Cadwallader was raised in a family with no money and he never had the benefit of having a father figure in the home. (Sent. Tr., p.10, Ls.6-9.) She noted that it was clear that there was little supervision in the home and noted that when Mr. Cadwallader was ten years old, his 23-year-old cousin began molesting him, “so it’s no wonder that things really started to spiral out of control for [Mr. Cadwallader] at that point with his family, dealing with those sorts of abuse and he began using substances. I think that’s the heart of what we see here; that he has a significant substance abuse history.” (Sent. Tr., p.10, Ls.10-17.) Counsel emphasized that Mr. Cadwallader had been “forthcoming and honest. He’s been open and sincere about this conduct and the extent of his criminal history.” (Sent. Tr., p.11, Ls.7-12.)

Mr. Cadwallader also acknowledged his substance abuse issues, particularly his struggle with methamphetamine. (PSI, p.25.) He knew that when he was on methamphetamine, “I become this person I don’t even like. I become a super criminal.” (PSI, p.25.) Mr. Cadwallader believed that a drug treatment program was necessary to help him overcome his addiction.

Mr. Cadwallader turned to drugs when his life spiraled out of control; he knew he had a problem and he knew he needed treatment for it. This addiction fueled his criminal activity. Mr. Cadwallader apologized for his actions and accepted responsibility. He had been forthcoming and honest with his attorney and the court. Considering this information,

Mr. Cadwallader respectfully submits that the district court abused its discretion by imposing a sentence of fourteen years, with two years fixed.

CONCLUSION

Mr. Cadwallader respectfully requests that this Court reduce his sentence as it deems appropriate. Alternatively, he requests that his case be remanded to the district court for a new sentencing hearing.