Uldaho Law

Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

12-13-2018

State v. Cadwallader Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45948

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/not_reported

Recommended Citation

"State v. Cadwallader Respondent's Brief Dckt. 45948" (2018). *Not Reported.* 5083. https://digitalcommons.law.uidaho.edu/not_reported/5083

This Court Document is brought to you for free and open access by the Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs at Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law. It has been accepted for inclusion in Not Reported by an authorized administrator of Digital Commons @ Uldaho Law. For more information, please contact annablaine@uidaho.edu.

Electronically Filed 12/13/2018 4:15 PM Idaho Supreme Court Karel Lehrman, Clerk of the Court By: Brad Thies, Deputy Clerk

LAWRENCE G. WASDEN Attorney General State of Idaho

PAUL R. PANTHER
Deputy Attorney General
Chief, Criminal Law Division

LORI A. FLEMING Deputy Attorney General P.O. Box 83720 Boise, Idaho 83720-0010 (208) 334-4534 E-mail: ecf@ag.idaho.gov

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF IDAHO

STATE OF IDAHO,)	
)	NO. 45948
Plaintiff-Respondent,)	
)	Ada County Case No.
v.)	CR01-2017-47504
)	
JEFFREY ALLEN CADWALLADER,)	
)	RESPONDENT'S BRIEF
Defendant-Appellant.)	
)	

<u>Issue</u>

Has Cadwallader failed to establish that the district court abused its discretion by imposing a unified sentence of 14 years, with two years fixed, upon his guilty plea to grand theft?

Cadwallader Has Failed To Establish That The District Court Abused Its Sentencing Discretion

Pursuant to a plea agreement, Cadwallader pled guilty to grand theft and the district court imposed a unified sentence of 14 years, with two years fixed. (R., pp.53-56.) Cadwallader filed a notice of appeal timely from the judgment of conviction. (R., pp.57-59.)

Cadwallader asserts his sentence is excessive in light of his substance abuse issues and desire for treatment, difficult childhood, remorse, and acceptance of responsibility. (Appellant's brief, pp.2-5.) The record supports the sentence imposed.

When evaluating whether a sentence is excessive, the court considers the entire length of the sentence under an abuse of discretion standard. State v. McIntosh, 160 Idaho 1, 8, 368 P.3d 621, 628 (2016); State v. Stevens, 146 Idaho 139, 148, 191 P.3d 217, 226 (2008). It is presumed that the fixed portion of the sentence will be the defendant's probable term of confinement. State v. Oliver, 144 Idaho 722, 726, 170 P.3d 687, 391 (2007). Where a sentence is within statutory limits, the appellant bears the burden of demonstrating that it is a clear abuse of discretion. McIntosh, 160 Idaho at 8, 368 P.3d at 628 (citations omitted). To carry this burden the appellant must show the sentence is excessive under any reasonable view of the facts. Id. A sentence is reasonable if it appears necessary to accomplish the primary objective of protecting society and to achieve any or all of the related goals of deterrence, rehabilitation, or retribution. <u>Id.</u> The district court has the discretion to weigh those objectives and give them differing weights when deciding upon the sentence. Id. at 9, 368 P.3d at 629; State v. Moore, 131 Idaho 814, 825, 965 P.2d 174, 185 (1998) (court did not abuse its discretion in concluding that the objectives of punishment, deterrence and protection of society outweighed the need for rehabilitation). "In deference to the trial judge, this Court will not substitute its view of a reasonable sentence where reasonable minds might differ." McIntosh, 160 Idaho at 8, 368 P.3d at 628 (quoting Stevens, 146 Idaho at 148-49, 191 P.3d at 226-27). Furthermore, "[a] sentence fixed within the limits prescribed by the statute will ordinarily not be considered an abuse of discretion by the trial court." <u>Id.</u> (quoting <u>State v. Nice</u>, 103 Idaho 89, 90, 645 P.2d 323, 324 (1982)).

The maximum prison sentence for grand theft is 14 years. I.C. § 18-2408(2)(a). The district court imposed a unified sentence of 14 years, with two years fixed, which falls within the statutory guidelines. (R., pp.53-56.) Furthermore, Cadwallader's sentence is reasonable in light of his ongoing criminal offending, his failure to rehabilitate or be deterred, and the risk he presents to the community.

Cadwallader has an extensive criminal history that began when he was just 10 years old and was arrested for burglary. (PSI, pp.5-19.¹) Cadwallader has a long history of disregarding the law, with a total of 63 documented arrests, multiple misdemeanor and felony convictions, multiple probation and parole violations, and prior terms of incarceration. (PSI, pp.5-19.) Cadwallader admitted that he did not do well on juvenile probation and that he violated his probation by absconding and producing positive urinalysis tests. (PSI, p.19.) As an adult, Cadwallader continued to perform abysmally while on probation and parole, and reported that, since 1998, he has been incarcerated for a total of 16 years. (PSI, pp.7-19.) Additionally, Cadwallader continued his criminal behavior while incarcerated by incurring multiple disciplinary sanctions. (PSI, p.19.)

In this case, Cadwallader and his wife led officers on a high speed chase through Meridian. (PSI, pp.3-4.) During the chase, Cadwallader's wife, who was the driver, traveled in excess of 80 miles per hour, attempted to collide with one of the officer's vehicles, and swerved her vehicle towards an officer who was attempting to deploy spike strips. (PSI, pp.3-4.) Officers successfully performed a PIT maneuver to stop the vehicle and, upon searching Cadwallader, found a check and a fake identification card with the name of Kevin White. (PSI, p.4.)

¹ PSI page numbers correspond with the page numbers of the electronic file "Cadwallader 45948 psi.pdf."

Cadwallader asserts that he has substance abuse issues and desires treatment.

(Appellant's brief, p.4.) However, Cadwallader has previously participated in an intensive

outpatient treatment program, but has obviously failed to be rehabilitated or deterred from

continued criminal offending. (PSI, p.25.) Cadwallader's difficult childhood, remorse, and

acceptance of responsibility do not outweigh the seriousness of the offense or Cadwallader's

continued criminal thinking.

At sentencing, the district court articulated the correct legal standards applicable to its

decision and also set forth its reasons for imposing Cadwallader's sentence. (3/2/18 Tr., p.13,

L.19 – p.15, L.25.) Cadwallader's sentence is appropriate in light of his ongoing criminal

offending, his failure to be deterred by prior legal sanctions, and his failure to rehabilitate within

the community. The state submits that Cadwallader has failed to establish an abuse of discretion

for reasons more fully set forth in the attached excerpt of the sentencing hearing transcript, which

the state adopts as its argument on appeal. (Appendix A.)

Conclusion

The state respectfully requests this Court to affirm Cadwallader's conviction and

sentence.